
Page 1 of 4 
April 9, 2015 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes 

DRAFT 
Minutes of the Planning and Zoning Commission 

April 9, 2015 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Sun Valley, Blaine County, State of Idaho, met in 
regular session in the Council Chambers of Sun Valley City Hall on April 9, 2015 at 9:00 a.m.  

1. Call To Order   

The meeting was called to order at 9:05 a.m. 
 
Present: Chairman Ken Herich, Commissioner Jake Provonsha, Commissioner Margaret Walker, and 

Commissioner John O'Connor.  
Absent: Commissioner Bill Boeger.  
 
Also Present: Interim Community Development Director John Gaeddert, Associate Planner Abby Rivin, 
City Clerk Alissa Weber, City Attorney Adam King, Nicole Ramey, Chuck Williamson, Peter Hendricks, 
Bruce Smith, Rob King.  
 
2. Public Comment   
None.  
 
3. Consent Agenda 

A. Draft Minutes from the Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting of March 12, 2015.  

Commissioner Provonsha suggested two changes: on page 1 add "all construction-related items" and 
change “pool vault” to “pool-equipment vault.” 
 

MOTION 
Commissioner John O'Connor moved to approve the minutes as amended. The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Margaret Walker. 
 
AYES: Chairman Ken Herich, Commissioner Jake Provonsha, Commissioner 

Margaret Walker, and Commissioner John O'Connor. 
NAYES: None 
 
4. New Business  

A. Alpine Enterprises, PLS for Mary & Louis Hoffer;  Public hearing for a Plat Amendment 
Application proposing to combine condominium units 2 and 4 and its associated three 
dimensional condominium property line, as shown on the condominium map for The Villager 
Condominiums (otherwise referenced as Bldg A, doors 1202 & 1204) into a singular Amended 
Unit 2A. Subject plat amendment approval to be a condition of approval for design review 
application (No. DR 2015-03), which is a remodel of the proposed new Unit 2A, in the Multi-
Family Residential (RM-1) Zoning District.  Location: 1202 & 1204 Villager Condo 
Drive.  Application No: SUBPA 2015-01.  

Associate Planner Abby Rivin described the process of reviewing the design administratively and noted 
the agenda item only concerned the plat amendment.  She noted the City received a letter and email in 
support of the application after it was publicly noticed.   

1

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54491
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54491
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54495
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54495
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54496
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54496
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54500
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54500
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54501
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54501
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54501
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54501
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54501
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54501
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54501
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54501
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54501


Page 2 of 4 
April 9, 2015 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes 

Bruce Smith, of Alpine Enterprises and representing the owners, stated the owners are removing a wall 
between two condominium units to combine them into one unit.  

Chairman Ken Herich opened the public hearing. Hearing no comment, Chairman Herich closed the 
public hearing.  

Abby Rivin noted the Commission had to make the specific findings found in City Code 9-4B-1F(1)-(4), as 
they are required for a plat amendment.  The Commission agreed the application met the findings. 

Commissioner O’Connor asked about construction timing. Nicole Ramey, the architect, stated the 
timeline is April 1 to June 30th and noted all construction materials would be stored in the unit garages. 

MOTION 
Commissioner Jake Provonsha moved to recommend approval of Application No: SUBPA 2015-01 to the 
City Council with the added findings  from 9-4B-1F(1)-(4), seconded by Commissioner Margaret Walker. 
All were in favor, none opposed. The motion carried. 
 
C. Sun Valley Elkhorn Association;  Public hearing for a Design Review Application proposing the 

installation of two new Elkhorn entry signs and a new Harker Center sign.  Location: north 
entrance at the intersection of Elkhorn Road and Village Way, south entrance across from 
Sunrise Drive, and the intersection of Morningstar Road and Harker Lane.  Application No: DR 
2014-032.  

Chairman Herich asked the Commission members for disclosures on the project. Commissioner 
Provonsha stated he had seen the drawings but did not discuss them. Commissioner Walker recused 
herself from the item because of her position on the Sun Valley Elkhorn Association board.   

Abby Rivin described the review process to date, stating the application had come to the Community 
Development Department in 2014 for administrative review. However, after residents adjacent to the 
Harker Center sign expressed concerns, the Community Development Department decided to bring the 
application to the Commission. She noted the residents approved of the updated design.  

John Gaeddert stated that the south entry sign does not have irrigation planned and asked the 
Commission to consider that as a discussion point. He stated his opinion that the rest of the sign is in 
compliance as to backlighting, size, etc.  

Rob King, the landscape architect, stated the northern sign does have irrigation, so the plan is to place a 
backdrop of shrubs and boulders around the sign. He also described the right-of-way contract and 
irrigation and encroachment permits for the proposed site. He stated the southern sign will be 
surrounded by native fescues. City Attorney Adam King noted that the City Code’s reference to 
landscaping includes native plants.  

Rob King described the Harker Center sign, noting it is smaller and lower to the ground than the other 
signs. He also stated the intention to work with the neighbors on landscaping plans.  

Troy Larsen, from Windy City Signs, described the design of the signs, including sign materials and 
lighting schemes. He noted all LED lights, wires, and the transformer will be placed internally.  

Commissioner Provonsha shared his opinion that while the signs are of a high-quality, the large size of 
the elk silhouette is not in keeping with the style of other signs in Elkhorn. The Commission and 
applicant discussed plans to replace the street signs around the Elkhorn area. They also discussed the 
sizing for the larger entry way signs and the Harker Center sign. The Commission continued its 

2

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54519
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54519
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54519
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54519
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54519
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54519


Page 3 of 4 
April 9, 2015 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes 

conversation about whether the sign is too large and the applicant offered to bring in a mockup of the 
sign’s actual size.   

Chairman Herich opened the public hearing. Hearing no public comment, he closed the public hearing.   

The Commission temporarily tabled the discussion until it could review the actual-size mockup.  

B. Review draft 2015 Transportation Plan Update as prepared by Keller Associates  
John Gaeddert described the plan and process for amending it. Brandon Keller, of Keller Associates, 
detailed technical aspects of the plan, including the determination that the City has a remaining service 
life of 8.5 years for its roads and paths system. He explained the report includes a list of prioritized 
projects to improve the City’s transportation system.   

John Gaeddert explained that the Commission’s role should focus on future land use and how 
development could affect transportation. The Commission discussed other areas on which they could 
provide input, including the projected population growth and city infrastructure needs.  

Commissioner O’Connor expressed his concern about the state of the City streets and how little was 
being spent to improve them. Brandon Keller stated the City spends about $250,000 a year on roads, 
which is a quarter of what used to be spent when there was a bond in place. The Commission discussed 
the importance of disseminating information in the draft plan to potentially pass another bond.  

The Commission discussed a chart on page 40 of the draft report showing how costly repairing roads can 
be if they are not properly maintained.  

Chairman Herich asked about the report’s recommended annual investment. Keller presented a portion 
of the report that discusses maintenance/repair scenarios based on various funding levels.  

The Commission and Keller discussed how the report interacts with state highways that run through the 
City. Chairman Herich pointed out the maps of Sun Valley city limits may be out of date and need 
updated via GIS.  

The Commission and John Gaeddert again discussed the Commission’s role in reviewing the plan before 
it goes to City Council. Gaeddert asked the Commission to bring recommendations to the May meeting. 

C. Sun Valley Elkhorn Association;  Public hearing for a Design Review Application proposing the 
installation of two new Elkhorn entry signs and a new Harker Center sign.  Location: north 
entrance at the intersection of Elkhorn Road and Village Way, south entrance across from 
Sunrise Drive, and the intersection of Morningstar Road and Harker Lane.  Application No: DR 
2014-032.  

The Commission reopened agenda item 4C by convening at the mock up outside of Council Chambers.   

When the Commission reconvened in Council Chambers, Chairman Herich reopened the public hearing. 
Hearing none, he closed the public hearing. 

The Commission began its discussion about the application’s Findings of Fact. Chairman Herich stated 
Finding 2 required a discussion about City Code 9-3F-3-B1 regarding landscaping. Rob King stated the 
southern sign will be landscaped with natural fescue mix and, depending on when it is installed, may 
need reseeded in the fall. Chairman Herich noted the Code allows for indigenous plants and the 
applicant is responsible for ensuring vegetation restoration.  

Chairman Herich added two Conditions of Approval. He asked that Condition 7 read as, “The applicant 
will take care to limit the visibility of the electric meters and panels mounted to or around the signs.” He 

3

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=3&clip_id=699
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=3&clip_id=699
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54523


Page 4 of 4 
April 9, 2015 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes 

also added Condition 8 to read “The applicant will make provisions to ensure the fescues surrounding 
the sign receive adequate water.” 

Commissioner Provonsha noted his continued dissatisfaction after viewing the mockup.   

MOTION 
Commissioner John O'Connor moved to approve Application No: DR 2014-032 with the two additional 
Conditions of Approval. The motion was seconded by Chairman Ken Herich. Chairman Herich and 
Commissioner O’Connor were in favor. Commissioner Provonsha voted nay. Commissioner Walker 
abstained from the vote. The motion passed 2-1.  
 
5. Continued Business  

Chairman Herich noted the Commission needed to appoint a Commission Vice Chairperson. 

MOTION 
Commissioner Margaret Walker moved to nominate Commissioner Provonsha to the position of Vice 
Chair, seconded by Commissioner John O'Connor. All in favor. The motion carried.  

John Gaeddert stated the next Commission meeting agenda would include a design review on a deck 
extension. He explained that they would normally review those administratively, but the City had 
received complaints about the project.  

6. Discussion Items 
None.  

7. Adjourn 

 

MOTION 
Commissioner John O'Connor moved to adjourn, seconded by Commissioner Jake Provonsha. All in 
favor. The motion carried.  

The meeting adjourned at 11:24 a.m. 

 
   

_________________________________________  
Ken Herich, Chairman 

 
 
_________________________________________  
Alissa Weber, City Clerk 

  

 

4

http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54528
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54528
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54534
http://sunvalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=699&meta_id=54534



